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(c) As used in paragraph (a) of this
section:

(1) Psychiatric or psychological exam-
ination or test means a method of ob-
taining information, including a group
activity, that is not directly related to
academic instruction and that is de-
signed to elicit information about atti-
tudes, habits, traits, opinions, beliefs
or feelings; and

(2) Psychiatric or psychological treat-
ment means an activity involving the
planned, systematic use of methods or
techniques that are not directly re-
lated to academic instruction and that
is designed to affect behavioral, emo-
tional, or attitudinal characteristics of
an individual or group.

(Authority: 20 U.S.C. 1232h(b))

§98.5 Information and investigation

office.

(a) The Secretary has designated an
office to provide information about the
requirements of section 439 of the Act,
and to investigate, process, and review
complaints that may be filed con-
cerning alleged violations of the provi-
sions of the section.

(b) The following is the name and ad-
dress of the office designated under
paragraph (a) of this section: Family
Educational Rights and Privacy Act
Office, U.S. Department of Education,
400 Maryland Avenue, SW., Wash-
ington, DC 20202.

(Authority: 20 U.S.C. 1231e-3(a)(1), 1232h)

§98.6 Reports.

The Secretary may require the re-
cipient to submit reports containing
information necessary to resolve com-
plaints under section 439 of the Act and
the regulations in this part.

(Authority: 20 U.S.C. 1221e-3(a)(1), 1232h)

§98.7 Filing a complaint.

(a) Only a student or a parent or
guardian of a student directly affected
by a violation under Section 439 of the
Act may file a complaint under this
part. The complaint must be submitted
in writing to the Office.

(b) The complaint filed under para-
graph (a) of this section must—

(1) Contain specific allegations of
fact giving reasonable cause to believe

§98.9

that a violation of either §98.3 or §98.4
exists; and

(2) Include evidence of attempted res-
olution of the complaint at the local
level (and at the State level if a State
complaint resolution process exists),
including the names of local and State
officials contacted and significant
dates in the attempted resolution proc-
ess.

(c) The Office investigates each com-
plaint which the Office receives that
meets the requirements of this section
to determine whether the recipient or
contractor failed to comply with the
provisions of section 439 of the Act.

(Approved by the Office of Management and
Budget under control number 1880-0507)

(Authority: 20 U.S.C. 1221e-3(a)(1), 1232h)

§98.8 Notice of the complaint.

(a) If the Office receives a complaint
that meets the requirements of §98.7, it
provides written notification to the
complainant and the recipient or con-
tractor against which the violation has
been alleged that the complaint has
been received.

(b) The notice to the recipient or con-
tractor under paragraph (a) of this sec-
tion must:

(1) Include the substance of the al-
leged violation; and

(2) Inform the recipient or contractor
that the Office will investigate the
complaint and that the recipient or
contractor may submit a written re-
sponse to the complaint.

(Authority: 20 U.S.C. 1221e-3(A)(1), 1232h)

§98.9 Investigation and findings.

(a) The Office may permit the parties
to submit further written or oral argu-
ments or information.

(b) Following its investigations, the
Office provides to the complainant and
recipient or contractor written notice
of its findings and the basis for its find-
ings.

(c) If the Office finds that the recipi-
ent or contractor has not complied
with section 439 of the Act, the Office
includes in its notice under paragraph
(b) of this section:

(1) A statement of the specific steps
that the Secretary recommends the re-
cipient or contractor take to comply;
and
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